

# **Getting Started Guide**

LabSpeed

**Topos Technologies** 

# Table of Contents

1	BEF	ORE YOU BEGIN	3
	1.1	WHAT IS LABSPEED?	3
	1.2	KEY FEATURES	3
	1.3	MINIMUM SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS	3
	1.4	USING THIS GUIDE	4
	1.5	TECHNICAL SUPPORT	4
2	GET	ITING STARTED	5
	2.1	STARTING LABSPEED	5
	2.2	MAIN WINDOW	5
	2.3	Online Help	6
3	USI	NG LABSPEED	7
	3.1	KEY CONCEPTS	7
	3.2	CREATING A NEW SESSION	8
	3.3	WORKING WITH VIEWS	11
	3.4	EXPORTING DATA	19
	3.5	PRINTING DATA	19
4	AD۱	ANCED FEATURES OVERVIEW	20
	4.1	PREVENTING CHANGES TO A SESSION	20
	4.2	PERFORMING CALCULATIONS ON THE INSTRUMENT DATA	21
	4.3	AUTO-EXPORTING AND AUTO-PRINTING	21
	4.4		22
	4.5	STATISTICAL PROCESS CONTROL (SPC)	23
5	THE	E CLIENT MANAGER	25
6	APF	PENDIX A – INSTALLING ADDITIONAL INSTRUMENT SUPPORT	26
7	APF	PENDIX B – GLOSSARY OF TERMS	28
8	APF	PENDIX C – INDEX	29

# 1 Before You Begin

# 1.1 What is LabSpeed?

LabSpeed provides instant access to the data stored by various types of analytical instruments in the laboratory. LabSpeed integrates the data into one common research and reporting environment and can be used at the instrument or in the office to simplify the everyday data analysis and data transfer needs of a typical laboratory.

### **1.2 Key Features**

Key LabSpeed Features include:

- Chart Designer
- Statistical Chart Designer (SPC)
- Report Designer
- Export Table Builder
- Reference Lookup Table Builder

Use LabSpeed To:

- Generate custom reports
- Analyze data trends
- Create new tabular data formats for Export to LIMS and other third party applications
- Perform calculations on the data and Include calculated output in reports
- Perform limit and quality checking on any data field
- Perform Statistical Process Control
- Auto-print and auto-export in "Monitor Mode"

#### **1.3 Minimum System Requirements**

- Microsoft® XP, Vista® or Windows 7
- 1024 x 768 minimum screen resolution; A higher screen resolution is recommended
- RAM Minimum 1 Mb internal RAM

# **1.4 Using this Guide**

This Guide is intended as a quick startup guide to describe the basics of LabSpeed concepts and operation for new users. It is not intended to be a comprehensive, detailed user manual. For complete information and examples of all the LabSpeed features, please refer to the online **Help Contents** as described later in section 2.4.

# **1.5 Technical Support**

This Getting Started Guide and the application's help file should address the majority of user's questions. If not, you can contact support at:

Topos Technologies, Inc. 241 Boston Post Road West Marlborough, MA 01752 508-460-1134 support@topostech.com

# 2 Getting Started

# 2.1 Starting LabSpeed

To run LabSpeed, double-click on the LabSpeed icon on the Desktop.

LabSpeed can also be run by choosing Start Menu | All Programs | Topos Technologies| LabSpeed.

LabSpeed initially runs in 30-day Trial mode. After 30 days, it must be licensed in order to continue. Licenses may be purchased online, or obtained from the instrument manufacturer.

# 2.2 Main Window

The diagram below shows the Main Window of LabSpeed as it would appear with an open Session that has six Views. The second View in the list, which is highlighted, is a Chart view.



Figure 2: LabSpeed Main Window (Example)

# 2.3 Online Help

Very detailed documentation is provided in an indexed and searchable Help document accessible via the LabSpeed Help menu. All features of LabSpeed are demonstrated with several examples. In addition, a step-by-step Tutorial is provided. To view the Help document, choose **Help | Contents**.





# 3 Using LabSpeed

Data generated by various analytical instrument manufactures varies widely in scope and format. LabSpeed can be used by anyone interested in viewing and manipulating this data for the purpose of analyzing trends, reporting results or transferring it in a different format to a third party program, such as a company LIMS system.

# 3.1 Key Concepts

#### **Understanding Templates and Sessions**

The **Template** is the basic structure the user will interact with when using LabSpeed. The Template contains no data. It contains saved parameters that will be reused, such as data selection rules and a list of **View templates**. When data is applied to a Template, it becomes a **Session**, which is displayed in LabSpeed in the Main Window.

Several example Templates are installed with each instrument Add-In. Each example Template may be used as-is or modified by you and saved under a different name with different data selection parameters and/or View configurations.

For example, a Template might be called "SPC" that contains various SPC charts and Tables, each setup to perform statistical process control on specific elements with specific applied limits. Another Template might be used for Limit Checking or Trend analysis. It's up to the user what a Template will ultimately be used for, how it will be configured and what Views it will contain. Templates should be developed to perform the data analysis functions needed in the laboratory.

#### **Understanding Views**

A **View** is a display object such as a **Chart**, a **Table** or a **Report**. Views that are part of a Session are stored with the Session when it is saved. A View may also be saved as a separate View file. A View file contains no data and may be shared with other Sessions. For example a report may be saved to disk as a View file and opened by a different Session that contains different data.

#### **Understanding the Active Connection**

Each Template may be configured with its own connection parameters. For example, a Template may be setup to always connect to the same database, or open the same named file. Or it may be setup such that the file is dynamic and selectable by the user.

A Template may refer instead to the **Active Connection**, which is the default. The Active Connection is particularly useful when the data connection parameters will be the same for all Templates. For example when the instrument data is stored in a database, such as SQL Server or Access, the database name, password and other connection parameters will typically be the same for all Templates.

There can be multiple, named Connections, but only one can be active at a time. When the user changes the Active Connection, it becomes the new connection for all Templates that refer to the Active Connection. For example, one connection may refer to a primary database and another may refer to a backup database. The use can easily switch between the two by setting one or the other as "active".

To change the Active Connection, or modify or create new connections for a Client, go to **Tools | Client Connections...** 

### 3.2 Creating a New Session

Ultimately, you will want to browse the instrument data, pick out some samples and view the results. You want to do this with minimal effort and without knowledge of how or where the data is stored. In LabSpeed you do this by **creating a new Session**.

A Session is created in two distinct steps.

- 1. Choose a Session Template
- 2. Select sample data by browsing the database or file

To create a new Session, click on the *New Session* toolbar button, which is the left-most button on the toolbar:



#### **Choose a Session Template**

First, select an instrument Client (list on left side) and then select a Template from the provided list of the available Templates. Each client instrument will have its own unique list.

	Name	Size	Туре	Date Modified
Topos : LabSpeed File Edition Demo	All Methods All Methods Journal Soil Samples	4903 249286 3301 290659 982792	Template Template Template Template Template	Nov 20, 2006 11:13 AM May 14, 2006 10:26 AM Nov 20, 2006 11:16 AM May 14, 2006 10:30 AM May 14, 2006 10:30 AM

Figure 4: Choosing a Session Template

#### **Select Samples**

Next, browse the database for the samples of interest. This is done in the LabSpeed Database Browser shown below. The Browser provides several date range and advanced sample filtering options for choosing the exact samples you are looking for.

🕑 Database Browser - Selecting Sa	nples								
<b>B</b> · <b>T B</b> · I	Click [Get All] or Select One or More of the Displayed Samples to Accept								
Date-Time Search	SampleID	Date-Time	Sample Name	Comment	Us				
	• 1	3/28/2006 4:24:53 PM	Sample-2		Slide				
	5	3/29/2006 10:55:22 A	Sample-1		Slide				
	8	3/29/2006 10:55:42 A	Sample-4		Slide				
Date Range	9	3/30/2006 6:52:01 PM	Sample-1		Slide				
◯ Today	10	3/30/2006 6:52:31 PM	Sample-2		Slide				
Select Days	11	3/30/2006 8:51:05 PM	Sample-1		Slide				
Number of Weeks: 3 🛨	14								
Search	6 Record	ls	Select A	I Deselec	t All				
Cancel Get All									

Figure 5: Searching and Selecting Samples

Click **Search** to re-query for a new list of samples if you change any of the search criteria. A list of matching samples will be displayed. Click **Get All** to retrieve all the displayed samples, or you can highlight specific samples in the list if you don't want all the them.

#### **View the Results**

The selected samples are read from the database or file and the **Session** is added to the LabSpeed workspace.



Figure 6: A Session displayed in LabSpeed

### **3.3 Working with Views**

#### **View Types**

LabSpeed provides six View types for viewing the data – Charts, Statistical Charts, Reports, Research Grids, Tables and User Tables. Each type contains its own **Designer** for creating and modifying the View contents and layout.

#### Chart

The Chart View is a view that plots any kind of data on 2- or 3-D axes. Properties can be adjusted to display a chart in various styles, colors and scales. Charts are created or modified using the Chart Designer.



Figure 7: Chart View

#### **Statistical Chart**

The Statistical Chart View supports six pre-defined statistical studies, including SPC (Statistical Process Control), Central Tendency and X/Y Correlation. Additional statistical chart gallery types include Histograms, Frequency Polygons, Box Plot, X-Chart and R-Chart.



Figure 8: SPC Chart View

#### Report

The Report View is a view that displays results in a printable, page-layout format. Using the Report View toolbar, you can zoom and step through all pages. Reports are created or modified using the Report Designer.



Figure 9: Report View

#### **Research Grid**

The Research Grid View is a drilldown view that displays results in a hierarchy of related tables.

Typically the "parent" table contains Sample information like sample name and acquisition date. You can drill down on each sample to see its element information and replicates.

					Henneri	hund					
trap.	a rations header to	ie to group to that	idiann.								_
hateen	SampleName	SampleTape	Acquetiste	Longeri	Method	Folder	CorrectorFactor	Sandelweicht	web/done	Fineb/skine	Starson
	Water-1	Unknown	5/3/2006 3:37.20 PM		WaterDeno	Section AU72	0.90909	11	1	1	5/1/2006 3:42:08
15	Water-2	Unknown	5/2/2006 3:37:31 PM		WateDano	Section AJ72	0.90909	13	1	1	5/1/2006 3 42:08
1	Creter	Chickard	Windsteine	044	Later Bud	link	Physics and	Shints-	(10)-1-1	200	Firms
14	Ar1890	Ar	189.642	177	manacia	Later .	4.992	4 99207 1950 91	0.029465795	0.590051582	LINET -
1	Ea3179	Ea	317 933	105	E	1005	6.315	6 3151 3977595	0.013917990	0.218805800	-
4	Ca2933	Ca .	393.366	85	F	10273	6.374	6.37352235244	0.063603473	0.987932850	
14	Du3247	Cu.	324,754	103	-	000	3632	363154671659	0.008997267	0.247753035	
	Tresseller	Terris.	Delification	DeliDert	11	1	1			1	-
	11	3632001238991	TRATTICITY	284 7777777777							
	2	3628546959312	7.00000000000	284 1111111111							
	1	354400957491	T	385 11111111111							
	4	3623638009622	7 0000000000000000000000000000000000000	284 000000000							
	Curter	Charlester	Weinhauth	Owie	Takan Rut	1 Marco	T TRULES Average	- Marine	01000	DOD	Trees.
14	HatB49	His	-164 990	181	Trineration	L rears	1.593	159335169694	0.009972101	0.563409938	1001
100	E 7564	E.	756.491	44	-	1000	20.45	20.49977533681	0.097161990	0.474927309	
14	Mg2852	Ma	285,213	117	-	12279	10.96	10.9607967199	0.117732525	1.074127712	-
4	NaSEES	No	568.995	57	Г	000	30.24	30.2396526772	0.294473306	0.940760521	-
æ	NaSESE	No	589.592	57	F	(ppr)	29.77	29.7668804059	0.146135163	0.490832073	
14	Pb2303	Pb	220.053	162	F	000	3140	0.91395371778	0.007342361	0.800351595	
+	Pb2814	Pb	261,418	128	E	page 1	3111	0.91109605134	0.005377197	0.590189939	
1	5_1807	5	180.731	185	E.	ppre	22.73	22.7321074093	0.047396165	0.206496774	
10	5_1820	5	162:034	184	E.	tita.	22.77	22.7730837293	0.1,204161.25	0.528765128	
法	202138	20	213.895	157		ppn	6902	0.69019551675	0.002716633	0.399396011	
	SampleName	SanpleType	AcquireDate	Connext	Method	Folder	CorectorFactor	5-angletweight	InitiaNolume	Finahlolune	EltorageDate
+ 1	Water-3	Unknown	5/2/2006 3:37:45 PM	1.000	WaleDeno	Section AI72	1.0225	0.978	1	10	5/1/2006 3 42:08
-	Wate-4	Unknown	5/2/2006 1 38/04 PM		WateDepp	Section AI72	0.74627	1.34	4	1.0	5/1/2008 3 42:08
4	Water 5	Unknown	5/2/2006-140/54 PM		WaterDeeno	Section AI72	1	1	1	1	5/1/2006 3:42:08
4	Water-6	Unknown	5/2/2006 3 41:11 PM		WaterDeep	Section AU72	1.1	1	1	1	5/1/2006 3 42:09
4	Water-7	Unknown	5/2/2006 3.41 24 PM		WaterDemo	Section 4172	0.83333	12	1	1	5/1/2006 3 42:09
1	Wate-8	Unknown	5/2/2006 3 41:36 PM		WaterDatero	Section AJ72	0.89296	1.12	1	1	5/1/2006 3 42:09
3	Water-9	Briknown	5/2/2006 3 41 53 PM		WaterDeepo	Section AUZ2	1.0225	0.979	1	1	5/1/2006 3 42/09
1-	Water 10	Unkrisen	5/2/2006 3 42:00 PM		WaterDenn	Sartan 4172	1.0225	0.928	1	t	5/1/2006 342:09
+ + +	Water 9 Water 9 Water 10	Unknown Unknown Unknown	5/2/2006 2 41:35 PM 5/2/2006 3 41:53 PM 5/2/2006 3 42:00 PM		WateDano WateDano WateDano	Section AI72 Section AI72 Section AI72	0.89086 1.0225 1.0225	1.12 0.978 0.978	1 1 1	1 1 1	5/1/2006 3 4 5/1/2006 3 4 5/1/2006 3 4

Figure 10: Research Grid View

#### Table

The Table View is a grid view that displays a subset of results from the Session data in a flat table of rows and columns. The Table View is ideal for displaying color-coded limit results and exporting data in user-defined formats. Table Views are created or modified using the Table Designer

088 000		240¢			1 <b>3</b> 3	•				
water Samples (8	Espart Now									
Bereach End	<ul> <li>Never Exponents</li> </ul>									
TH Equation 1945						Table				
- Average Concentration Churt	BangdeName	AcquireD ate	SampleType	User Native	ConscionFactor	Captort	DipleAverage	SidDev	ASD .	
Stanlard Danatan Chat	Water-1	5/2/2006 3:37:20 PM	Unknown	G.Washington	0.90908	Ac1890	4.958	0.017021476564	0.343343961260	
URSD Chee	Water1	5/2/2006 3:37:20 PM	Unknown	G.Washington	0.90909	Ca3179	6.335	0.050133012814	0.791422343395	
Herizar Chat	Wates-T	5/2/2006 3 37 20 PM	Unknown	B.Washington	0.90909	Ca2933	8.368	8.049803473178	D.719316700826	
averages Tible	Water-1	5V2/2006 3:37:30 PM	Unknown	G Washington	0.90909	.Du3247	1.632	0.026578903321	0.731849947802	
Wate Analysis Report	Water1	5/2/2006 3:37:20 PM	Unknown	G.Wathington	80909.0	Hg1849	1.594	0.005753049958	0.060801738585	
Core Trend Diari	Water-T	5V2/2006 3132 20 PM	Unknown	G:Washington	0.90908	1_7654	30.34	0.134179495787	0.659699514498	
Canand Mg Check Linds Chail	Water-1	5/2/2006 3 37 20 PM	Unknown	G Washington	0.90909	Mg2852	10.97	8.083662995776	0.762902322503	
and the second s	Water7	5/2/2006 3:37:20 PM	Unknown	G:Washington	0,90909	N 65689	30.12	0.289150516901	0.960061000606	
	Watao-1	5/2/2006 3:37:20 PM	Unknown	G.Wathington	80909.0	N #5895	29.94	0.210372403336	D 702750383824	
	-Wate+1	5/2/2006 3:37:30 PM	Unionoven	G.Washington	0.90909	Pb2203	.9132	0.006022216335	0.659476693796	
	-Wabin 1	5/2/2006 3:37:30 PM	Unknown	G Washington	0.90909	Ph/2614	9115	0.007944952468	0.871619146292	
	Water1	5/2/2006 3 37:28 PM	Cellinover	G.Washington	0.90908	5_1907	22,96	0,1,2964890,3674	0.567257041784	
	Water-T	5/2/2006 3 37:20 PM	Unknown	G.Washington	0.90909	5_1820	22.62	0.144452137584	0.639645823733	
	Water1	5/2/2006 3:37:30 PM	Unknown	G/Washington	0,90909	262138	6837	0.007192306570	0.499963402528	
	Water-2	5/2/2006 3:37:31 PM	Unknown	G:Washington	0.90909	Ax1890	4,992	0.023465795481	0.590251582230	
	.Mater-5	5/2/2006 3:37:31 PM	Unknows	G.Washington	0.90909	Ca3179	6,315	0.013817890591	0.218905907178	
	Water-2	5/2/2006 3 37:31 PM	Unknown	G/Washington	0.90908	Ex3933	6.374	0.063903473293	0.997932890985	
	Water 2	5/2/2006 3 37 31 PM	Unknown	G:Washington	0,90909	Du3247	1.632	0.008397267236	0.247753035798	
	Wates 2	5/2/2006.3:37:31 PM	Unknown	B.Washington	0.90909	Hp1649	1.583	0.003977101781	0.963409938993	
	Water2	5/2/2006 3:37:31 PM	Unknown	G Washington	0.90909	1_7664	20.45	0.097161950946	0.474327303121	
	Water-2	5/2/2006 3:37:31 PM	Unknown	G.Washington	0.90909	Mg2852	10.96	0.117732525416	1.074127712391	
	Water 2	5/2/2006 3132 31 PM	Unkinosan	G: Washington	0.90909	N 65889	30.24	0.294473306622	0.940790521904	
	Watas-2	5/2/2008 3:37/31 PM	Unknown	G.Washington	8 90909	N #5655	29.77	0.146135163236	0.490912073645	
	Water 2	5/2/2006 3:37:31 PM	Unknown	G:Washington	0,90909	Pb2203	9140	0.007342261774	0.0033751535648	
	Watas-2	5/2/2006 3:37:31 PM	Unknown	G.Wathington	0.90909	Pb2614	9111	0.005377197231	0.590189939212	
	Water 2	5/2/2006 3:37:31 PM	Unknower	G.Washington	0.90909	5_1907	22.79	0.047396165261	0.209499774039	
	Water-2	5/2/2006 3 37 31 PM	Unknown	G Washington	0.90909	5_1820	22.77	0.120416125399	0.528765128298	
	Water-2	5/2/2006 3.37.31 PM	Cellinover	G.Washington	0.90908	202138	6605	0.002716633821	0.099396011086	
	Watas-3	5/2/2006 3 37 46 PM	Unknown	G Washington	1.0225	Aa1890	5,587	0.028181268261	0.504370233095	
	Water 3	5/2/2006 3.37.46 PM	Unknown	G/Washington	1.0225	Ca7179	7.109	0.090092399771	1.127451017096	
	Water-3	5/2/2006 3:37.46 PM	Unknown	G-Washington	1.0225	Ca3933	7.204	0.038578292964	0.535494901101	
	Mar43	5/12/2006 3:37:45 PM	Unknowes	G.Washington	1.0225	Cu3247	4.102	0.040066876794	0.976690344753	
	Water-3	5/2/2006 3 37 46 PM	Unknown	G Washington	1.0225	Hg1849	1.788	0.019975804749	1.117349499614	
	Water-3	5/2/2006 3 37:46 PM	Unknown	G Washington	1.0225	K_7664	23.12	0.155318990777	0.671733966309	
	Water-3	5/2/2006.3.37.46 PM	Unknown	B.Washington	1.0225	Mg2852	12.26	0.061065419013	0.4981.47888627	
	Water 3	5/2/2006 3:37:45 PM	Unknoveri	G Washington	1.0225	N 65869	33.90	0.144504511552	0.425303401966	
	Water-3	5/2/2006 3:37.46 PM	Unknown	G.Washington	1.0225	N a5695	33.62	0.380275141165	1.124402844357	
	Water-3	5/2/2006 3132/46 PM	Unknown	Gi Washington	1 0225	Pb2303	1.018	0.0033377505607	0.979517917204	
	Water-3	5/2/2008 3:3736 PM	Unknowet	G.Washington	1.0225	Pb2614	1.027	0.006786689290	0.660543793423	

Figure 11: Table View

#### **User Table**

The User Table View is a look-up table defined by the user that contains user-entered values. Predefined types include Limit Check, Quality Check and Print Limit. Custom User Tables may be created for almost any purpose, such as entering correction factors that can be applied to the instrument data. User Tables are created or modified using the User Table Designer.



Figure 12: User Table View

#### Adding Views to a Session

A View may be added to a Session by opening a View file, or by creating one from scratch using **Design Mode**.

#### **Opening a View File**

Open a View file by selecting the appropriate toolbar button on the Views Toolbar.



A list of Views of that type will be displayed for selection.

#### **Create a new View from Scratch**



Create a new View by selecting the appropriate toolbar button on the Designer Toolbar.

Click on the Design Mode button to enter Design Mode for the currently selected View. The Design Mode button acts as a toggle to enter and exit Design Mode for a View. Use Design Mode to modify an existing View.

# 3.4 Exporting Data

Each View can export the data in a number of ways specific for the View type. For example, a Chart may be exported as a **Metafile** or **bitmap**. A Table may be exported as **Excel** or a **CSV** (comma separated values) text file. A Report may be exported as **PDF**, **Text**, **RTF** or **HTML**. There may be other formats as well. To export data, select a View and click the Export View button on the toolbar. The list of possible export formats will be displayed in a list for selection.



The **Table View** is the preferred view for exporting to third party programs such as a LIMS system. Many third party programs import CSV text format, but have specific requirements for how the data is to be arranged and labeled. With drag & drop simplicity, the Table View can used to setup any CSV format as well as provide field name mapping. Enter Design Mode for a Table View to setup special Export options.

# 3.5 Printing Data

Although each View type can be printed, the Report View is the preferred method for generating high quality, customized page layouts of the analytical results, complete with page headers, and footers, page numbers and company logo.



# **4 Advanced Features Overview**

### 4.1 Preventing Changes to a Session

A Session can be **locked** so that it cannot be changed. A Session can be "soft" locked, so that anyone can unlock it to make changes, or "hard" locked, which requires a password to unlock it. Locking a Session using a password securely prevents any changes to a Session unless unlocked by someone who knows the password.

To lock a Session, click on **Session | Lock Session**... The Session can also be locked by right-clicking on the Session in the Explorer bar and choosing Lock Session... from the pop up context menu. This menu item acts as a toggle. Click on it again to unlock the Session.



Figure 13: Locking a Session

# **4.2 Performing Calculations on the Instrument Data**

You can add new columns to a Table and a Research Grid View and apply a formula to calculate the values based on other data in the same row. This can be used for applying corrections, evaluating check limits, converting to different units or species, calculating new quantities such as "hardness", or for any other purpose.

When new columns of data are added to a Research Grid, the new data is available for all other View types, including Charts, Reports and Tables.

To add new columns and apply formulas, click on **Design Mode** for the Research Grid

Ī

Add Column..

Σ

Formula.

and choose the appropriate Designer toolbar buttons.

### 4.3 Auto-Exporting and Auto-Printing

**Monitor Mode** is a special LabSpeed mode that can be used to monitor the database for new samples. When a new sample is detected it can be automatically printed and automatically exported. Monitor mode can be setup to:

- Auto-export to multiple locations with multiple formats
- Auto-print to multiple printers with different print layouts
- Match specific sample criteria to Auto-output
- Export and print more than one sample at a time (for example, to save paper a report could be printed with two samples per page)
- Auto-output by time (e.g. export and print all new samples detected every 30 minutes)
- Auto-output by number of samples (e.g. wait to auto-export or auto-print until 10 new samples are detected)
- Monitor Mode can run 24 hours/day, 7 days/week

Monitor Mode is implemented through a special Session Template type called Monitor. The Monitor Template type is not supported by all Client Add-Ins. If it is supported, a Template called "Monitor" will be installed with the Client Add-In.

# 4.4 Limit Checking

Many processes require checking to determine if analytical results are within a valid range of values. Limit Checking is the method used to evaluate data by comparing to minimum and maximum values and then reporting the pass/fail results in a Table or Report. There are three types of Limit Checks supported by LabSpeed

- 1. Limit Checks Limit Checks are typically used for checking sample results against upper and lower pre-set bounds for process control.
- 2. Quality Checks Quality Checks are typically applied on Quality Control samples in order to check instrument performance.
- 3. Print Limit Checks Print Limits are typically used to flag data that falls outside a calibration linear range.

Limit checking in LabSpeed requires a Limit Check **User Table** be created that contains high and/or low limit values for a series of instrument data. For example, if the instrument generates elemental concentrations, a Limit Check Table should specify high and low limits for each element concentration. Limit Checking may be applied to any instrument result, such as average concentration, standard deviation or %RSD. A Limit Check Table may specify any number of low and/or high limit values.

To Create a Limits Table, create a new User Table of the desired type:



Figure 14: Create a Limits Table

Once a Limit Table is created, it can be referenced by a Research Grid or Table to perform checking on a particular column of data. Results in a Table View may be color-coded to indicate Pass, Fail or Not Checked.

	SampleNo	Element	Results	LimitResults	LimitStatus
•	BECK SAMPLE 3	Si	7.58	>>H7.55	Fail High
	BECK SAMPLE 3	Fe	0.343	<l0.343< td=""><td>Fail Low</td></l0.343<>	Fail Low
đ	BECK SAMPLE 3	Cu	3.48	3.48	Pass
	BECK SAMPLE 3	Mn	0.228	0.228	Pass
	BECK SAMPLE 3	Mg	0.233	0.233	Pass
1	BECK SAMPLE 3	Cr	0.012		Not Checked
	BECK SAMPLE 3	Ni	0.038	<l0.038< td=""><td>Fail Low</td></l0.038<>	Fail Low
7	BECK SAMPLE 3	Zn	0.238	0.238	Pass
	BECK SAMPLE 3	Ti	0.121	1	Not Checked
	BECK SAMPLE 3	Ag	0.0006		Not Checked
ī	BECK SAMPLE 3	В	0.0011		Not Checked
	BECK SAMPLE 3	Ba	0.0001		Not Checked
	BECK SAMPLE 3	Be	0.0001	<l0.0001< td=""><td>Fail Low</td></l0.0001<>	Fail Low
	BECK SAMPLE 3	Bi	0.0016		Not Checked

Figure 15: Color-coded Limit Check Results in a Table View

#### 4.5 Statistical Process Control (SPC)

Process control charts provide a basis for deciding whether the variation in the output is due to common causes (in control) or assignable causes (out of control). With all SPC charts, the Mean and the Standard Deviation values 1-sigma, 2-sigma and 3-sigma are calculated and displayed.

Upper and lower specification limits (USL, LSL) may be entered for each series from which the capability index can be calculated and displayed.

In addition to the standard SPC line chart, X-Charts, R-Charts, Histograms, Frequency Polygons and Ogive gallery types are supported.



Figure 16: SPC Chart

To create an SPC chart, create a new Chart of the Statistical type. Then, in the Chart Designer, build the chart axes normally. It is recommended for SPC to control a single element at a time and create multiple SPC charts for each controlled element.

# **5 The Client Manager**

The Client Manager is where you will manage the current list of LabSpeed Clients. You can add, upgrade, duplicate, view and delete Clients in the current list. To access the Client Manager, choose **Tools | Client Manager...** The following Window will be displayed:

🔏 Client Manager							×
Current Client List							•
Client Name	Company	Product	Add-In Version	AddHnDate		Add-In Type	Status
Topos : LabSpeec File Editio	Гороз Гороз	Lab3peedFileDe Lab3peedStand	1.0.2390.32454 1.0.2515.21548	Jul 18, 2006 Nov 20, 2006	08:01 PM 11:58 AM	File Standard	0< 0<
					)		>
Add Clients	Upgrade Clients		Vier		Duplicate	Delete	
						ОК	

Figure 17: Client Manager

# 6 Appendix A – Installing Additional Instrument Support

#### **Installing Add-Ins**

Installation of specific instrument support is usually performed at the same time that LabSpeed is installed. However, adding additional instrument support to LabSpeed is a simple 4-step process.

- 1. Download Free Instrument Add-In from our Website
- 2. Install Add-In
- 3. Add Client to LabSpeed
- 4. Confirm Active Client Connection

#### Step 1. Download Instrument Add-In

Using a PC with internet access, visit our website at <u>www.topostech.com</u> and follow the link to **Supported Instruments**. Choose an Instrument Add-In from the list provided and download it to your PC Desktop or a temporary folder. The Add-In downloads as a single ".msi" (**M**icro**s**oft installer) file. If you are using a PC that is not where LabSpeed is installed, copy the install file to the PC where LabSpeed is installed to install it.

**Note:** If the PC where LabSpeed is installed has internet access, you can also run Lab-Speed and click on the **Help | Download Instrument Add-Ins** menu item. This is a direct link to the Download Add-In page on our website.

#### Step 2. Install Add-In

Double-Click on the downloaded ".msi" file to install. Follow the directions.

Warning: LabSpeed must not be running when installing an Add-In. If it is, exit the program first.

#### Step 3. Add Client to LabSpeed

Run LabSpeed. A dialog will appear that indicates LabSpeed has detected a newly installed Add-In. Follow the link to the **Client Manager.** You will see the newly installed Add-In Client Name presented in a list. Check the box to the left of the Client Name and click OK. This will add the Client to LabSpeed.

Note: You can also add the Client to LabSpeed manually. From the **Tools Menu**, choose **Client Manager**. In the Client Manager, click on the **Add Clients...** button.

#### Step 4. Confirm Active Client Connection

Before using this new Client to create charts and reports, you should check to make sure the database or file connection is setup the way you want it.

Run **Client Connections** from the **Tools Menu**. Select the newly added Client in the Client List and ensure that the Active Connection is set. If it is not, select the default Connection and click **Set Active**. Next, select the Connection and click **Edit....** On the following screen make sure the data source information is correct (database or file name and path, password, override preferences, etc). Click **Next** and test the connection to make sure the connection succeeds.

#### **Un-installing Add-Ins**

To un-install an Add-In, use the Windows Control Panel "Add/Remove Programs" application. Find the Add-In name in the list and remove it.

**Note:** Un-installing an Add-In does not remove the Client from the LabSpeed Client list. If you wish to remove the Client from LabSpeed, run the Client Manager from the Tools menu, select the Client and choose Delete.

# 7 Appendix B – Glossary of Terms

Term	Meaning
Add-In	A LabSpeed Add-In is a separately installed external software module that specifically supports a particular instrument data source, file or database.
Connection	A Connection a list of connection parameters for a particular data source type.
Active Connection	Connections may be saved with unique names for later recall. The Active Connection is the currently selected connection to be used by all Templates.
Template	The Template (or Session Template) is the basic structure the user will interact with when using LabSpeed. It contains saved parameters that will be reused, such as data selection rules and a list of Views.
Session	A Session is a Template to which data has been added. A Session is displayed in the LabSpeed workspace.
View	A View is a visual object used to display data in a particular form, such as Table, Chart or Report.
Design Mode	The mode in which a View may be created or modified.
Client	A Client is the name of a LabSpeed solution, which consists of an instrument Add-In and a number of LabSpeed Session Templates and Views.
Client Manager	The section of LabSpeed where installed Clients can be managed. The Client Manager is used to add, remove, duplicate and change Clients
Limit Checking	Limit Checking is the method used to evaluate data by comparing to minimum and maximum values and reporting the pass/fail results.

# 8 Appendix C – Index

Active Connection, 8, 28 Add-In. 28 Auto-export, 21 Auto-print, 21 Browser, 9 calculate, 21 Chart View, 12 Client, 8, 25, 27, 28 Client Manager, 25, 27 connection, 8, 27 Connection, 28 Design Mode, 18, 28 export, 3, 19, 21 Features, 3, 20 formula, 21 Help, 6 Limit Checking, 17, 22, 28 lock, 20

Main Window, 5 Monitor Mode. 21 Print Limit, 22 Printing, 19 Quality Checks, 22 Report View, 14, 19 Research Grid View, 15 Session, 7, 8, 11, 28 SPC, 23, 24 Statistical Chart View, 13 Table View, 19 Template, 7, 9, 28 un-install, 27 User Table, 22 User Table View, 17 View, 7, 18, 28 Types, 11